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May 15, 2009 9:02 a.m.

PROCEEDTINGS

MS. KOEPNICK: Let"s go on the record.
Good morning. This i1s day five of the evidentiary
hearing in the matter captioned DPU 09-01-A, an
investigation by the Department on i1ts own motion
into the preparation and response of Fitchburg Gas
and Electric Light Company, doing business as
Unitil, to the December 12th, 2008 winter storm,
pursuant to General Laws Chapter 164, Sections 76
and 1E.

I"m Laura Koepnick. [I1°m one of the
hearing officers assigned to this case. With me on
the bench are Joan Foster Evans, also a hearing
officer 1In this case; Barry Perlmutter, director of
Electric Power; Don Nelson, analyst with Electric
Power; Ghebre Daniel, assistant director of Electric
Power; and Shashi Parekh, analyst with Electric
Power.

Would counsel for the company please
note their appearance for the record.

MR. MUELLER: Good morning. On behalf
of Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company, Scott

Mueller and Meabh Purcell, of Dewey & LeBoeuf. With
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us 1s Gary Epler, chief regulatory counsel for
Unitil.

MS. KOEPNICK: Would counsel for the
Attorney General introduce themselves.

MR. STETSON: On behalf of the Attorney
General, Martha Coakley, my name i1s James W.
Stetson. With me today are Assistant Attorney
Generals Tackey Chan and Sandra Callahan Merrick,
and also analyst Fred Plett 1s at the table with us
as well.

MS. KOEPNICK: Thank you.

MR. STETSON: Do you mind if 1 continue
without my jacket on?

MS. KOEPNICK: 1"m fine with that.

MR. MUELLER: Objection.

MS. KOEPNICK: We"re continuing today
with the Attorney General®s cross-examination of
Mr. Bob Yardley. 1 remind the witness that he is
under oath.

Is the Attorney General ready to
proceed?

MR. STETSON: She 1s.

MS. KOEPNICK: Let"s continue, then.

ROBERT C. YARDLEY, JR., Previously Sworn
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CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. STETSON:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Yardley.
A. Good morning.
Q. We left off yesterday and we had a
colorized version of an attachment spreadsheet
denoted as the Action Plan Summary, that 1 asked you

to take a look at. Did you have a chance to review

that?
A. I did.
Q. In the far left-hand column, 1t sets out

items under the term Recommendation. Do you
recognize these recommendations?

A. Yes, 1 do.

Q. And do they essentially follow the
recommendations that you set out iIn your self-
assessment report?

A. In general, they do.

Q. Could you tell me what you mean by "in
general™?

A. I think for spreadsheet purposes they~ve
been reduced 1n some cases to bulleted 1tems. I™m
assuming that the plan will be developed to capture

the essence of the recommendation and everything
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that went into it.

Q. To the left of the column that says
Recommendation there®s a P column and then an
R-with-a-number column. Do you see those as the

numbers of the recommendations that we"re dealing

with?
A. The recommendation number appears to
follow -- I didn"t check, but I believe 1t follows

the orders and numbers of the recommendations.

Q. Do you recognize what that first column
might be?
A. I did try to decipher that last evening. |1

do not know what that refers to.

Q.- We"l1l save that for the sponsoring witness.

What 1°"m looking to use this for is to

get, in a little bit of a shorthand way, an idea of
what your expectations were with respect to the
company taking steps to achieve your
recommendations. So 1°d like to go down this sheet
and maybe look to glean from you those steps and
kind of the end game for the company that
accompanied your -- or that was the background for
your establishing certain recommendations.

A. Certainly, with respect to the background I
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can comment. 1 haven"t prepared or 1"m not involved
in the implementation. So, you know, that would be
more opinion, really.

Q. But you did have expectations as to what

the company should do to respond to your

recommendations. [Is that fair to say?

A. I think the report is pretty clear. That"s
true.

Q. Just before we do go down that road: This

exhibit does have columns that indicate status, and
that seems to be some indication of where the
company is on responding to the recommendations that
you®"ve made. The executive, or EXEC, sponsor, do
you recognize those individuals as ones that would
have responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of your recommendation, of that
particular recommendation?

A. I didn"t go through this recommendation by
recommendation. But in general these are executives
at Unitil. Typically, when you"re engaging iIn an
effort like this, you would designate an executive
to keep track of individual work plans.

Q. Beside the status there"s a COMP date.

Does that appear to be the company®s -- some
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indication of at least an estimated completion date?

A. Yes, and it seems to correspond with the
timeline that appears to the right. But that would
be my iInterpretation.

Q. We see In the blue vertical cells,
particularly the third one from the left -- there"s
general categories under which the recommendations
are then set forth. Are these the general areas
that are also found iIn your assessment report,
particularly as you get, not to the executive
summary, but you get into the report i1tself?

A. Right, although --

Q. IT you look at the table of contents,
there®"s similar general topics under which the
recommendations fall.

A. Yes, with the exception of the final topic,
which 1s expressed as general, 1t seems to
correspond with the chapter --

Q. And you would call these chapters i1n your
self-assessment report?

A. I use ""chapters™ and 'sections”
interchangeably. But that last one seems to
correspond to storm readiness.

Q.- Let me ask you: With regard to the first
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topic or chapter there, preparation and crew
mobilization: Could you tell me what your
expectation was for the company for them to achieve
your recommendations? |1 believe here it"s

combined -- there are two recommendations: No. 1,
recruitment of crews; and No. 2, storm rooms.

A. I"m not sure of your question. What are
you asking me?

Q. What do you expect the company to do to
fulfill and to respond to your Recommendations Nos.
1 and 27

A. I expect them to develop a work plan that
addresses not only what"s in the recommendation but
the background that®"s provided. You know, a typical
work plan -- and as 1 think 1 said yesterday, it
takes a while to put one together. Teams will be
formed. | would assume there are teams that have
been assigned one or both of these recommendations.
That team would look at the report, reflect on their
recommendations, look outside the company for
experience -- in this case, we know Mr. Francazio
has considerable experience at Grid -- and anything
else that 1 think might not have been included in

the recommendation. And then we work backwards
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from, okay, here i1s where we want to be -- how 1
like to approach projects -- but start with where
you want to end up and work backwards to develop a
work plan that you"re confident will get you there.

Q. Where 1s 1t you want to be as regards
Recommendations 1 and 27

A. I want to be able to walk into the CEO"s
office, and if he asks me, "Are we going to be
prepared to get the crews we need when the next
storm hits of this magnitude,” I want to be able to
say yes. And when he asks me the follow-up
questions, | want to be prepared and show him

exactly how that objective will be met.

Q. What about the storm room?
A. What"s the question? |I"m sorry.
Q.- What®"s the end, where we want to be with

respect to responding to your storm rooms?

A. In this case, this i1s based on my visit to
the storm room after the storm. And just looking at
the environment -- it was In an open area -- 1I-°d
like to see the people that are working in the storm
room have more security, more of a closed
environment. They"ve got, I think, an ideal room iIn

the facility that could be used as a storm room. It
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has lots of walls, lots of space. 1It"s quite a
large room and could accommodate easily 15 to 20
people working under those conditions.

Q.- You sat through the testimony so far 1in
this case. Does i1t appear that the company has
actually achieved some part of the -- 1 guess
they“"ve i1dentified the Column 5, subprocesses. Have
you heard that the company®s achieved some of those

items that are set out in subprocesses?

A. In listening to testimony and what 1"ve
heard, I know they®ve made progress on several of
these.

Q. You"re looking for them to achieve -- to

evaluate the value of joining EEl and their mutual

aid, and we"ve learned that they®ve actually joined

EEl1"s mutual-aid group. |Is that an accurate
statement?
A. That"s my understanding from listening to

Mr. Francazio.

Q. So they"ve achieved that part of that
recommendation, would you say?

A. Yes.

Q. And securing standby services, | believe

there was testimony that they have signed
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contracts --
A. I did hear that as well.
Q. -- with additional contractors for standby

services?

A. That"s my understanding.

Q. I don"t recall hearing any testimony with
regard to storm rooms. Do you?

A. I do not recall.

Q. Moving on to the second kind of over --
chapter or topic. Damage Assessment: Do you see
that as the second section set out?

A. I do.

Q.- And there®"s two recommendations there:
Damage Assessment Staff and Training, No. 3; and
No. 4, Damage Assessment Forms and Compilations.
Again, | ask you: With regard to damage assessment,
where did you want the company to be once they®ve
responded to your recommendations under those two
items?

A. With respect to staffing and training --
and 1 think at least the staffing aspect seems to be
underway -- 1 would expect them to start internally,
identify potential people that are capable of

performing damage assessment; recognize that some of
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these same individuals might be more productively
applied to another part of the restoration effort,
sort of subtract them i1f they"re really not going to
be available for damage assessment; and then
determine at the end of that, you know, "Do we have
enough trained damage assessors?'” |1 think using
this past storm 1s a good benchmark, hopefully.

And then 1 would expect them to, If 1t
iIs not, then they need to come up with a way to get
secure resources from outside the company to perform
damage assessment. | think there was some
discussion of that yesterday.

Q. So the thrust of that recommendation is the
company should be prepared to put more people In the
field to do damage assessment when 1t"s called upon?

A. And adequately trained people.

Q.- Now, as to No. 2, Damage-Assessment Forms
and Compilations: Could you give me your thoughts
on where the company should go to satisfy that
recommendation?

A. Yes. This 1s the first of several
recommendations that touch on systems and
information flows.

Let me tell you what I know has occurred

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

872

so far. In January, when they were looking st the
status of their system, they performed damage
assessment at that time. And 1t"s my understanding
that they adopted some of the forms that they had
seen that Grid use and tested them iIn the field for
that exercise. So there®s a sort of very basic, you
know, "Does this form really capture the i1nformation
we need?"

As you can 1magine, that"s not a big
project, to sort of look at the form: "Wait, walt,
this other form i1s better than the one we"re using.
Let"s try 1t and see how 1t works on our system."

So that process 1s underway.

Converting all of the damage assessment
into intelligence requires a much more thoughtful
approach from the people that are performing the
damage assessment, the people that are relying on
the damage assessment to perform their tasks, people
that are communicating the results of that damage
assessment, making sure that they®"re getting the
information that they think customers and public
officials will want.

You know, that®"s a more challenging

aspect, so I would imagine that would take more time
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to really address.

Q.- But the end point of that i1s that they have
a form that they can utilize and then draw up
compilations that eventually becomes the damage
assessment?

A. Yes. It results in better information, and
in a form that you don"t have to have people working
all night long. 1 mean, they probably will be
working all night long even in future storms -- but
so that when they are working all night long, they
have got the information that"s In as good a form,
it"s sortable 1n different ways. However they
anticipate they might use that information, they"ve
got the tool to make their work as efficient as
possible.

Q. Now, Mr. Yardley, moving on: 1 like
dealing with these chapters. There"s only eight of
them, as opposed to 28.

But Power Restoration, you"ve got three
recommendations under that topic area. Again, I™m
going to ask you, with regard to No. 5, Storm Room
Staffing, maybe referring to the subprocesses as a
bit of an outline, to use as a bit of a guide:

Could you tell me where you expect the company to be
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once iIt"s responded to your recommendation?

A. I guess 1 would expect that the company
would have thought through -- and there®s been
certainly plenty of debriefing within the company --
what happened 1n the storm room, what worked, what
didn*t work. 1 think as a general principle -- and
maybe a personal bias -- sort of pushing work down,
getting people engaged as much as possible, so that
the person and people at the top are really focusing
on what they should be focusing on -- you know,
what"s best for the overall effort.

So I think it"s appropriate, after
having gone through the storm, to sit back and look
at that and really come up with a more strategic
sort of approach: "What®"s our organizational
response?’” This applies to any organization. But
that would be what 1 expect.

Q. Is this group, these three recommendations,
are these iIn a sense looking for the company to
reevaluate i1ts emergency response plan?

A. In the column -- 1 took note last night of
these three columns that are highlighted in -- 1
don*t know 1f that"s chartreuse, lime, and -- 1

think you can identify the three columns I™m
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referring to. One i1s titled IT, one Training, and
one ERP. So you can see appropriately that these
would have an impact on the ERP.

Q.- Now, with respect to No. 6 iIn particular
right now, Restoration Processes and Reporting:
Where do you see the company being when it responds
adequately to that recommendation?

A. I would expect them to address this from
both an operational standpoint and a communications
standpoint, so that --

You have to make sure the operational
people have what they need. That"s No. 1. To the
extent you can use some of that data to serve as a
dual purpose of communication, that"s a positive,
and 1t should be generated sort of automatically
based on reliable information at that time, so
everybody is working from the same data set, and
then you"re able to communicate information that"s
also of iInterest and of legitimate concern to people
you"re communicating with, whatever group that might
be.

Q. So, in effect, you"re urging the company to
improve its data-collection and-reporting processes,

with the emphasis on reducing reliance on

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

876

paper-based information flows?

A. I would like to see everybody that"s
working on the storm -- and they"re working 16 hours
a day at least -- 1°d like to see them be able to

have the i1nformation they need at their hands, so
that they can really focus on what they®re very good
at.

Q. To achieve your goal in this
recommendation, would 1t be necessary for the
company to invest in an outage-management system?

A. That®"s a separate recommendation. But I
believe the outage-management system will help with
some of the efficiencies iIn this area.

Q. Now, No. 7 is Field Communications. Could
you elaborate on your recommendation there?

A. Well, there was an i1ssue that came up
because of the loss of electric power that radio and
cell towers had 1n 24 hours a backup at the
facility. So, you know, you would -- so if there 1s
a problem and you can®"t communicate, there needs to
be some process i1in place either to modify the backup
provisions or make sure they®"re refueled constantly
or a couple of times a day, and the company may have

done that, actually.
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So i1in this case they were relying on
cell phones. In many cases the cell phones weren™t
working, personal cell phones. So | just think 1t"s
an area the company should look at and say, 'Okay,
let"s just ask everything we can. 1Is there anything
else that we could do iIn case we have this event
which knocks out communications and the electric
system?" 1 just think 1t"s a prudent thing to do.

Q. Do you have an opinion as to what they
should do to implement this recommendation that
broadens their communications options?

A. No. This i1s where the consultant stops at
the water.

Q. But you"re asking them to look into 1t and
consider 1t and do what they feel 1s reasonably
prudent to make 1t work better the next time?

A. Yes, 1If there are things that can be done,
they should certainly look at them.

Q.- The next topic Is outage tracking. Again,
I ask you: Where do you see the company being once
they“ve responded to your recommendation here?

A. As you can tell by the timeline, this is
kind of a staged effort. The first thing 1s, this

iIs a system that will be required from the outside.
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You have to define your requirements, issue the RFP,
evaluate the RFP, finalize the contract.

The OMS works because 1t iIntegrates with
existing systems. The GIS iIn particular is
particularly important. The vendor iIs going to need
to work with Unitil®"s GIS folks to integrate that
system, and that process would be repeated for any
other system that OMS interties with.

So 1 would see -- 1 really am not
familiar at all with the implementation plan here.
But 1 would imagine that they would sort of look at
this phased effort and prioritize, you know: ™"This
is what we"d like to get done by November.™ They"re
not going to get everything done, but they will be
much better prepared by taking certain actions
earlier, rather than saying, '""No, we"re not going to
roll out anything until the whole thing i1s perfect."”
I don"t think that®"s the appropriate approach in
these circumstances.

Q.- You somewhat refer to the far-right
columns, with the title at the top being Time Line.
The yellow bars seem to indicate and correspond to
the completion date of July 2010. |Is that what

you"re referring to, the yellow sections that kind
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of go out until July of 20107?
A. Yes. This actually looks like it might be

June of 2010. But that"s my interpretation of the

yellow.
Q. I think you may be right. Maybe 1t"s the
end of June. Anyway, | just wanted to note that for

the record, that there i1s a section called Time
Line.

One of the processes i1s Train Resources
to operate and Maintain The System, as well as to
Develop a Project Team for OMS Implementation. Do
you see that recommendation as suggesting the
company obtain and implement an OMS system?

A. I"m sorry, could you repeat the question?

Q. Do you see the recommendation as strongly
suggesting the company implement an OMS system?

A. Combined with the balance of the report, I
would expect them to implement an OMS system.

Q. Do you know i1f there®"s been any steps taken
in that direction at this point?

A. I believe they®"ve i1ssued an RFP. I don"t
know what the status of responses i1s or time lines
or anything.

Q.- I understand. Moving on to Logistics
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Support, which 1s the next area, and there®s two
recommendations under Logistics Support. Again,
could you tell me where you expect the company to be
once they"ve responded to your recommendations,
particularly as regards to No. 9, Logistics Support,
and No. 10, Inventory Management and Stockrooms?

A. With respect to No. 9, 1 would expect that
the company will be able to manage and support a
very large number of crews, that they won"t have to
rely on -- they won"t have to rely on another
utility. But they will be relying on vendors.
There are vendors that provide a lot of these
services. | think Base Logistics 1s one. 1 don"t
know 1f that®"s come up in the record yet.

So they need to -- they"re not going to
hire 500 people to sit around and wait for the
storm. | shouldn®t use 500. I should say 50 or
something; that"s more reasonable. So this iIs a
case where outsourcing to meet the peak probably
would make sense.

So, from that perspective, 1f that"s
correct, then you go back and say, "Does anybody
provide this? What are their capabilities? Do they

do 1t for other utilities? Who do they do it for?
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What type of storms have they worked on? What do
those utilities think of their performance?”™ You
know, due diligence to make sure that youT"ve
identified the best people and have the contracts in
place.

Q.- Now, you reference the fact that logistics
support 1s something that vendors do provide?

A. Certain aspects of 1t. So I"m thinking in
particular of setting up another staging area. You
mean, you need a supply. You need to be able to
distribute supplies to crews at that staging area.
You need to be able to fuel trucks. You need to be
able to feed people, provide them with food when
they come in. There"s a whole series of things that
will require, as | understand -- you know, setting
up tents -- to make 1t a professional work
environment under potentially hazardous working
conditions.

Q. I believe the record indicates -- there"s
an indication that at one point there were as many
as 290 crews working within their service territory.
Does your recommendation go to that extent, that
they should prepare to accommodate and perform the

logistics for a crew range in the 200 to 300 range?
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A. The recommendation reads, "Develop an
approach that will enable Unitil to manage the
number of crews that were required to respond to the
2008 i1ce storm.”™ 1 assume that"s at least 300. 1
would expect that 1t"s a scalable approach. 1 would
expect the company not to design a system for 300.

I would expect them to design a scalable approach,
so in fact there"s no absolute limit on the number
of crews -- I mean, within reason -- i1In terms of
from a management perspective; and then a safety
perspective, 1,000 crews driving around at the same
time.

Q.- And that would also apply to iInventory
management and stockroom support?

A. I don"t know that they would rely on
outside contractors for this. This may be possible
to achieve through the second-job approach.

Q. Could you give me a little bit of
background: Install a Backup Generator in
Stockrooms?

A. I believe at least one of the facilities --
I don"t recall which one -- and the company can
correct me; obviously they know for certain -- that

one of them was not, at least at the beginning of
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the storm, when 1t first hit, attached to a backup
generator.

So each of the facilities has backup
generation capability, but the backup generation is
intended for emergency purposes. |I"m not certain
that -- 1 know, for example, in Hampton, it doesn"t
light up the whole building, but i1t lights up the
important areas that are needed to keep the company
functioning during an outage.

Q. And that didn*"t include the stockroom?

A. I believe 1n one of the cases i1t didn"t
include the stockroom, but I"m going from memory
here.

Q.- Thank you. Moving on: We"ve got a
significant number here under Customer
Communications, Recommendations 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,
and 16. Could you at least summarize what you
expect the company to be once i1t responds to the
recommendations that you set out here under the
topic Customer Communication?

A. This covers a wide range of subtasks, so
I"m just taking a moment to summarize In a way --

Q. Take your time. This 1s a very important

area --
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A. -- to move things along.
Q.- -- that we would appreciate your i1nsight
into.
(Pause.)
A. These recommendations cover sort of the
gamut from -- 1°m going to work backwards -- making

sure you have enough capacity to handle the call
volume, making sure that you have people that are
trained and able to respond to customers as well as
they can and that they have appropriate screens 1in
front of them, to the messaging -- you know,
consistent messaging based on current information.
I think there®s been plenty on the record that
indicates that the information can be improved in
terms of what the call-center representatives have.
And the outage-management system has the potential
to address some of these areas.

So 1t"s making sure people have the
information they need and want and making sure the
capacity i1s there and the adequate training and
staffing is available. But even that -- 1 know
we"re focusing on recommendation by recommendation.
But this recommendation is tied to really -- there-s

another key aspect, which iIs demand-side management.
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You know, more effective communications
on the public communications will help decrease the
call volume and help decrease the length of the
calls. So sort of in the abstract, looking at the
call center and doing a study of how many lines do 1
need and how many CSRs do I need is really missing a
big part of the equation.

Q.- And that would be what?

A. That would be -- well, 1f you think about
the type of questions people had when they got
through to a call-center representative. You know,
"1 live on Salem Street. When do you think you"re
going to get to my area? |1 know it"s a big storm,
but 1t"s been six days. What are your plans?”
People want to know --

As 1t lengthens, they want to know more.
They just want more information. [I"m not suggesting
these are unreasonable questions at all. So some of
that may be accomplished through more broadcast
messaging by the company, to say, 'Look, here is
what we"re doing. Here®s our approach. Here®s how
we do restoration.”™ | think one of the
recommendations at some point, maybe in the public

communications, talks about communicating with
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customers about what restoration -- sort of how it
works, so a layman can understand. 1[It"s not rocket
science. There are certainly many technical terms
we"ve heard iIn the hearing. But the customers --
people are reasonably intelligent, and they can
understand messaging from the company that describes
the process.

Q. The final recommendation deals with
estimated billing. Could you give us what you
perceive as the end game for an estimated-billing
recommendation? Where do you expect the company to
be once i1t"s responded to your recommendation?

A. This really isn"t a technical
recommendation. 1 mean, we"ve all dealt with
estimated billing for many years. There®s no
perfect solution. 1It"s complicated. You cannot
explain estimated billing to a customer and expect
them to understand how 1t"s done, | don"t think.

This 1s more, you know, take a timeout
before you send out the estimated bill and say,
"Okay, you know, forget the technical aspects of i1t.
But just from a customer needs and expectations, how
are we going to communicate that?"™ -- without

getting into well, 1t"s based on three months from
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last year and we assume the average weather. Half
of us can barely understand that.

Q. Before we leave the customer communication,
iIs 1t fair to say we"ve heard a fair amount of
comment from the company regarding i1ts response to
these recommendations in the testimony at these
hearings? They seem to have increased lines, which
is one of the subtopics. They seem to be
evaluating, you know, call-center staffing and
training.

A. Right. And the overflow is critical. |1
mean, that takes some of the pressure off coming up
with the right number of lines and the right number
of staff available at all times. Obviously you want
to do those things, but, you know, for relirability
purposes, the overflow takes some of the pressure
off having decided that 137 lines, whatever, 1is
enough and 1t should have been 142. You don"t
really know until you®"re iInto an event. That"s why
I mentioned the demand-side aspect of 1t as well.

Q. You"re talking about the overflow is
something that they could get a vendor to be there
in case they needed such support. [Is that indeed

the case?
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A. Right. 1 think Mr. Lambert testified that
they may already have executed a contract with an
overflow provider. There was a question about,
"Well, how much did i1t cost?"” And he said, "Well,
nothing until they answer the first phone call,” 1
think, or something to that effect. So there are
vendors that provide this service.

Q.- Now, in the timeline, opposite the No. 15,
which 1s the subprocess that®"s i1dentified as
Increase Lines, there®s a green dot -- cell filled
in with green. Does that seem to indicate In your
mind that that subprocess has been responded to, or
that part of the recommendation®s been responded to?

A. I suppose i1t does. It might be better to
ask the person that colored iIn that particular box.

Q.- That colored In that dot.

The next topic 1Is Public Communication.
That starts on the bottom of Page 1 of 2 and carries
over to Page 2 of 2. Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. Again, this has a multitude of
recommendations that relate to i1t: 17, 18, 19, 20,
21, and 22. Might you be able to summarize what

your recommendations are with respect to this topic?
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And could you include In there what you see as where
the company 1s once 1t responds to your
recommendations?

A. I"m trying to think of the best way to
capture this i1nformation. 1 guess what I would say
iIs that the public communications, or communications
in general -- not just at a utility, but at any
organization -- they are really challenging. YouT"ve
got a lot of people iInteracting, for example, with
people on the outside. You don"t want to dictate,
"This 1s the message, this i1s what we want to
communicate,'™ but you want to make sure everybody
has the information they need to express themselves
in an intelligent and informed way, In their own
words and with their own style. So there®s an
informational aspect of i1t in terms of reliable --
one of the recommendations is reliable, consistent
recommendations.

And then you need an effective way to
identify what the best media are and how to
communicate with those media efficiently. So when
you think of, in the case of a storm -- many of the
people you might interact with have the leverage to

then help bring a consistent message to their
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constituents. So a public official, for example:
As a leader of the community, they want to be i1n a
position where they have enough intelligence -- and
even 1T 1t"s not the specific answer to "When"s my
power on Salem Street,”™ because | don"t know i1f 1t
ever will be that -- but they have enough
intelligence to sort of say, "Okay, I understand
what the company is doing. Here®"s what they“re
doing. I understand you may not like the answer"™ --
similar to what our call-center representatives
might have said -- not "ours,"™ but Unitil~"s.

So there®"s that aspect of 1t. That"s
why 1t lists traditional and nontraditional
communications. Personally, 1 don"t Twitter, but I
understand many people do.

And then even before those
communications take place In the heat of a storm,
you would conduct, as | mentioned previously, you
know, customer education on the restoration process.
It could be bill inserts. 1 think i1t should be at
least a link on the Web page that does that.

And then sort of organizing this effort,
which 1s really challenging, because you®ve got so

many people. The communications needs in this storm
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and any storm that will be like this are going to be
vast. It"s not just the media. 1I1t"s from all
directions at all times, and 1 think the company
described its response as being reactive.

So the thrust of these -- i1t will always
be reactive iIn the heat of the storm, but 1f there
are some proactive things that it can do as the
storm advances, so throughout the year, to sort of
set that up, then i1t will be as proactive as 1t can
be during the storm itself.

Q. Now, the Ffirst i1tem under 17 is Develop a
Methodology Whereas All Communications Emanate From
a Single Operations Source. Could you elaborate on
that as a recommendation, whether or not the company
seems to be, from the testimony you"ve heard, moving
in that direction?

A. Are you relying on the table or the
recommendation i1tself?

Q. I*m actually reading from the Subprocesses
column, for No. 17. 1Is that a fair description --

MR. NELSON: The bottom of Page 1, if I
might interrupt. This i1s the bottom of Page 1?

MR. STETSON: Yes, it is. Thank you.

Sorry about that.
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A. Yes, I"ve read what this says. What"s your
question?

Q.- Is that a fair representation of your
Recommendation 17? And if so, have you heard from
the testimony in this proceeding whether or not the
company seems to be moving in that direction?

A. This 1s a case where 1 would say, you know,
putting things down on this sort of chart without
repeating the entire recommendation, I"m not sure it
really captures the recommendation.

Q. Could I ask you, then, what your
Recommendation 17 -- what you see as the crux of

your Recommendation 17? If you might just summarize

it for us.

A. I think the company will have more sources
of information at the end of this. It will have the
OMS, other sources of information. 1 wasn"t

referring to a specific individual. But Unitil as
an organization should have an iIntegrated sort of
database decision-support system and communications
system that supports decisions and helps satisfy
communications objectives. |I"m not thinking of it
as a single operations source. 1 think the data

will come from many places and that 1t"s the systenm

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

893

supports all the needs that the operational and
communications people have.

Q. No. 18, just again quickly: The
subprocesses are i1dentified, and 18 is on the second
Page of 2: Define a Communication Protocol For Each
of Unitil"s Constituencies. Does that accurately
describe the crux of at least part of Recommendation
18?7 And i1f so, what would you mean by
"communication protocol™ and what are the
constituencies that they"re referring to there?

A. I think this does accurately represent the
recommendation.

A protocol i1s a sort of, an
understanding -- when there®s more than one person
involved i1n performing a task, what a protocol does
iIs, 1t sort of establishes the boundaries and who"s
responsible for what, so that if 1"m Person X, |
know my role, and 1 also know what 1"m expecting to
receive from Person Y and what I"m expected to
deliver to Person Z. So the protocol lays that out.
In this case, 1t"s not all people within the
company; i1t"s constituencies beyond the company.

So 1If there"s a protocol, just using

public officials as an example: Public officials
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want the ability to learn what®"s going on. So one
approach to that is having prescheduled conference
calls, so that the public officials know when the
call 1s going to be held, they know the agenda.
There would be, 1 assume, a generic agenda --
status, what"s next, how do things look, what
concerns are we hearing from the community -- and
that the public officials would have had an
opportunity to present their insights from working
with the communities they serve and that there would
be some expected outcome, so that everybody knows,
"This 1s how 1t"s going to have to work. 1 don"t

have to call the company. There®"s a call at 4:00

o"clock this afternoon. This can wait. It"s not a
public-safety i1ssue. 1°11 raise 1t on the
conference call.” Then you get the benefit of

everyone hearing i1t.

Q. As an aside, would you expect that this
kind of exercise might be part of a live drill at
some point?

A. Yes, this would be part of a drill.

Q. Or the subject of a drill at some point, in
advance of the actual need to perform these in the

aftermath of a storm that shut off power to that

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

895

area?

A. I*m sorry, when you said "aftermath,”™ 1 got
distracted.

Q. Would you expect that these kind of
exercises should be part of a drill that would be i1n
advance of any actual episode where they need to
play out?

A. Yeah, 1 mean, 1 think you conduct a drill.
You have the event. After the event you go back and
say, "How did it work for you? Was this a good
process? What do we need to change?"™ I think 1t"s
a process, and you do that storm after storm and you
figure i1t out.

Q. I"m going to jump down a little bit to
Recommendation 21, Customer Education on Restoration
Process. What were you anticipating with respect to
the subprocess here, Develop Customer Education
Material on Unitil"s Restoration Process. What
would you expect that to be and in what form?

A. I would expect the company to take certain
aspects of the plan that appear to be the most
confusing to customers, or ones that would be
helpful for customers to understand -- so I°1l just

use one example, and that would be the
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prioritization of repairs.

You know, most of us are not familiar
with how the distribution system works. [It"s not
organized by town boundaries or streets, even. And
the notion of primary lines and secondary lines,
these are all concepts that are not familiar to the
average consumer.

So in communicating to them, 1 would
expect that some plain language be used, some
diagrams -- again, you know, treating customers as
reasonably intelligent people. And that 1t may go
into the prioritization issue: "This i1s how we
prioritize. This i1s why we do 1t this way. This 1s
why you may see a truck on your street and then
leave before your service iIs restored.”™ 1 know
there were at least a couple of examples iIn another
state where people were trying to block the trucks
in on their street and not let them leave. There"s
no need for that to happen.

So I think the company can do some
things proactively. How they communicate 1t -- you
know, bill inserts could be part of 1t. Not
everybody reads their bill iInserts, so there could

be other public ways to communicate this type of
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information.

Q.- Moving on to the final, general topic:
Would you feel this i1s better described as Storm
Readiness?

A. That"s how I"ve titled that section.

Q. Again, there"s six recommendations under
this topic heading. Could you give us a brief
description of what your recommendations are and
where you expect the company to be once it"s
responded to your recommendation?

A. I think there"s actually quite a bit more
detail, particularly in the -- as related to the
plan i1tself, in the report, the self-assessment
report on Page vii. This really clearly defines, 1
believe, what I would expect them to do. You know, 1
would expect that there would be some conversations
between the company and the municipal officials,
particularly the emergency first responders, the
police and fire departments, so that they“re
comfortable 1n terms of how they will interact with
the plan. So that"s in general what 1 would say
with respect to that one.

In terms of the updates, again, 1 think,

irrespective of this regulatory proceeding, there

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

898

would have been, 1If this proceeding had never been
held, significant revisions to the plan to respond
to the experience during the storm. There may be
other experiences like that in the future. 1 would
expect them to continually look at the plan and
implement any changes that needed to be made.

Mock drills 1 think we"ve discussed
previously.

Q. Could 1 just draw your attention to what 1is
the subprocess Conduct Drills Annually. Could those
be described as fully active drills, as opposed to
tabletop drills? Are you recommending that they do
actual live drills annually, as opposed to tabletop
drills?

A. That may be better directed at
Mr. Francazio, because -- my understanding of, when
he was describing the tabletop, was 1t was as close
to a simulation of an actual event -- you"re not
going to have an actual event. You"re not going to
take one of your substations down and see how
everybody responds.

My interpretation of what he said was
that 1t"s going to involve people outside the

company, i1t"s going to be as active -- 1 think he
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said at one point that the people involved in the
drill don"t even know what the scenario i1s when the
drill begins. [I°m not even sure 1If they know a
drill i1s being conducted that day. So | interpreted
that to be pretty comprehensive.

Q. In regard to what you®"re recommending as
annual drills, 1s that the type of annual drills

that you"re recommending to the company that they

perform?
A. Yes, and it also, 1 would expect it to
include -- 1 think a lot more interaction with the

communities 1Is appropriate around the plan in
general. So the drill 1s not iIn isolation. We
don"t talk to the communities and then show up and
say, "Oh, we"re having a drill in an hour. Do you
think you can participate?” 1 would expect there"s
a lot of communication well in advance of the drill,
so we"re not really testing things for the first
time, the company has already reflected feedback
from the municipals before they get to the drill,
the actual drill.

Q. And the final i1tem, Tree-Trimming Policy:
Could you describe to us what you mean by Revisit

the Trim Cycle? And is that a fair description of
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your recommendation under No. 287

A. No.

Q. Could you tell me what would be a fair
representation of your recommendation?

A. Okay, tree-trimming: Tree-trimming, It
sounds simple: Tree-trimming. We have to do tree-
trimming every four years on this, every three years
on this, and off we go.

Tree-trimming 1s one of the most
complicated things that a company does on behalf of
its customers. It really involves -- they®"re making
a judgment with respect to several objectives on
behalf of the customer. They"re making judgments
about rate impacts, how important is reliability,
that next i1ncrement of reliability improvement
relative to the cost to achieve that next increment.
They"re reflecting esthetics, what the customers
want. Storm hardening would be another objective.

So there are many objectives. And i1t"s
not that the -- the company may have perfect cycles,
and 1 know they®"ve underspent In terms of being able
to meet those cycles, but they"ve also been able to
achieve their reliability. 1"m not convinced one

way or another, and 1 didn"t spend months, which is
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really almost what"s required In this area, to sort
of try to figure all of that out.

But what 1 do think 1s, at the end of
the day, that customers -- and this is what the
recommendation really goes to -- is that communities
and customers have a window into how those various
objectives contributed to the tree-trimming policy.
The customer®s not really I don"t think, iInterested
in whether i1t should be six years or seven years,
because 1t"s as much art as science.

But 1 think that 1t"s Important that
customers have an understanding of, okay, this is
the background policy, these are the objectives, and
this 1s how the company has weighed those various
objectives, and that"s a reasonable thing to do. |
wouldn®"t expect that you"d be explaining to each
customer, but certainly the groups that represent
customers -- the Attorney General, the Department,
public officials, certainly the tree wardens would
be involved. But 1 would expect that the company
would work with them to have a discussion about
tree-trimming.

Tree-trimming IS not an us-versus-you

issue. 1It"s, you know, how can we incorporate your
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objectives as well and come up with a policy that
makes sense? But 1"m not suggesting the current
policy doesn®"t make sense. The recommendation goes
to communication of the policy to the communities
and customers.

Q. Drawing your attention to the timeline as
it relates to the Storm Readiness section, Public
Communications section, and the Customer
Communications section: All three of those
sections, the timeline seems to indicate that those
recommendations will be responded to and implemented
on or before November of 2009. 1Is that your reading
of the spreadsheet?

A. That"s my interpretation, yes.

Q. Would that be consistent with your -- with
the timeline that you had in mind when you made
these recommendations?

A. I think actually the response may get to
some of this. There was a data-request response
that went to this, sponsored by Mr. Francazio.

Q. I"m asking 1If you had a timeline with
respect to your -- when you made your
recommendations, as to where they should be, you

know, by a time certain.
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A. I would expect the company to be as ready
as possible for an event, first. That would be my

first priority. That would not be --

Q.- Are you talking about tomorrow or next
week?

A. I think 1f there was an event tomorrow,
they"d be a lot -- 1 think you®d be hopefully

surprised by how ready they may be.

I would want them to focus on those
aspects, and i1t there were other aspects that are
sort of "We have to have them sometime but we"re
still able to respond”™ -- so, for example, 1 know
they“ve done some work on the damage-assessment
process. You know, they could roll out a new
process now on damage assessment. Obviously, the
training they would be behind on; but I think they~"d
be quickly ready for that. That"s just my sense.

I would not want them to get everything
perfect.

Q. You wouldn®t want them or you wouldn®t
expect them?

A. I wouldn®"t want them to get everything
perfect if 1t meant or in any way impeded their

ability to be ready for a storm quickly. So that
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would be my -- if asked, that would be -- if
somebody came to me and said, ""We"ve got these
conflicting priorities. How should we resolve
them?" that would be how 1 would respond. 1 think
that®"s consistent with what Mr. Francazio said.

Q.- And that"s consistent with your
expectations when you developed the recommendations
in this report?

A. Yeah, 1 mean, I"m not the expectations-
setter, so I"m not that authoritative figure that
that implies. So I can"t really --

Q. Who should be the expectations-setter?

A. The CEO should be the expectations-setter.
This 1s a major impact, potentially impacting on the
company .

Q. So with respect to the -- that should fall

as well to, say, the CO0O as well?

A. I think 1t starts with the CEO.
Q. CEO.
A. Yes. They may delegate certain aspects of

it to the CO0O, the CI0O, to Mr. Francazio. But at
the end of the day, you know, 1t can®"t be a three-
headed committee. Somebody®s got to be there

pushing each of them -- "What are we doing? Are we
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on schedule? What®"s scheduled next?" -- 1n a fairly
aggressive manner.

Q. When you take all of your recommendations
as a group, what are your expectations with respect
to the company and where it should be once theyT"ve
implemented -- and 1 use that term because that"s
the term the company has stated it would do -- once
the company has implemented your recommendations?
I"d just ask you to focus on storm restoration.
Where should they be?

A. I would expect that they would work just as
hard as they did In this prior storm, that they
would have the resources that they need to perform
the job, that they would have the tools and
information that they need to be as efficient as
they possibly can be.

I would expect that there will continue
to be issues, individual i1ssues that come up,
because, you know, as a massive logistical exercise,
iIt"s not going to go perfectly, so there will
continue to be those.

I would expect that they will proceed
along the path that other utilities have: first

storm, wake-up call; second storm, much better,
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still some things to work on; third storm, made
progress on all of those. And then from that point
on i1t would be sort of more minor tweaks, unless
there was some event that they really hadn™t
contemplated 1n the plan.

So that®"s what I would expect to see.

Q. So your expectations in part, probably the
greatest part, i1s that we should -- the customers
should see an improvement, an overall Improvement iIn
their storm restoration time, a reduction In time?

A. I can"t conclude that. 1 can i1t will be
much more efficient. 1 think communications will be
much better. To me, expected restoration time --
you know, the company didn®"t have accurate
information. They were providing the best
information that they had, but i1t wasn®"t good
enough.

So, to me, the disconnect wasn"t so much
it should have been 12 days instead of 14 days or
whatever. To me the i1ssue was more how they
communicated the expectations.

Q. So the expectation would be iImproved
efficiencies 1In the restoration process and

communications?
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A. You know, 1 think the recommendations cover
the range of just about everything that could
contribute to -- there may be others -- that can
contribute to a much better overall effort. But
ultimately, as i1t states in the report, you know,
the time required -- and 1 know Mr. Francazio said
they tried to sort of sense what 1t might be -- 1t
really depends on the extent of the damage and the
resources you can bring to bear.

Q. But as a result of those efficiencies or
increase in efficiencies and iIncrease in
communications, would it be reasonable to expect
faster restoration times?

A. The restoration times will be different for
every storm. There might be --

Q. 111 give you that.

A. Thank you. There might be a storm where,
you know, 21 days would be pretty good, if I"m iIn
Kentucky. You know, 1t"s different for every storm.

All things being equal, as economists
like to say, 1 would expect that it will be more
efficient and there might be some time savings that
result from that. All I"m saying -- and I wouldn™t

conceive the Department or anyone else would do
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this. But to say, "We"ve decided we"d like every
storm restored i1n seven days,' you know, it doesn"t
reflect the reality on the ground. That wouldn®"t be
an appropriate standard.

But based on what happened, the company
should be expected to perform efficiently,
communicate effectively, get the resources i1t needs,
many things having been done before the storm hits,
and that would certainly iIncrease -- or decrease the
restoration time. How much, 1 think 1t"s impossible
to say. Ultimately 1t comes down to the damage and
what®"s occurred on the system.

Q. Did you include In your report any
suggested means of oversight of the implementation

of these recommendations?

A. No, 1 didn"t consider that to be within my
purview.
Q. Do you have any opinion as to how these

might be overseen and how they might be monitored?
A. With respect to the company i1tself, their
internal oversight, 1 think I indicated the CEO
should be, and 1 believe is, personally involved.
The board of directors has also been involved. So I

know that 1t has attention internally. |1 don"t know
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iT you were referring to external oversight as well.

Q.- Either or both, really. As a former
regulator, would you have any view, i1If you were back
in the position as Chairman of the Department, how
you might look to see that these recommendations

were implemented going forward?

A. IT I were back at the Department, which 1
don"t expect to happen anytime soon, I would like to
see some --

I want to be, since I"m the chairman and
I"m getting the phone calls from legislators and
from government officials and from the Governor,
saying, "What is going on?" and I"m giving my best
response, that®"s not a great position to be iIn.

So what I would do 1s I want to make
sure -- you know, 1"m not the one implementing the
plan, but I do want to know what progress i1s being
made, how quickly is it being made, are they going
to get there, and 1 want to be In a position --
because people expect me to comment intelligently, 1
want to be 1n a position to do so. So that®"s how 1
would approach it.

Q. Might you consider an auditing approach as

well, going in and looking at where the company 1is
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with respect to the various recommendations, either
maybe participating or overseeing that drill?

(Discussion off the record.)

Q.- Participate in a drill as part of an
auditing function?

A. Can we start over?

Q. Yes. Would you consider as part of a
regulatory oversight performing an audit relative to
what recommendations have been carried through on,
and maybe even to the point of participating or
overseeing the conduct of a drill?

A. As the Department, | would expect that they
would be a participant in the drill, because, as we
know, they were part of the restoration process. |1
would not expect the Department to oversee the drill
unless for some reason it believes 1t has specific
capability 1n that area.

I would expect the company to
communicate not only with formal means but informal
communications, meetings with the Department, other
interested parties, to report on theilr progress, so
it"s more of a conversation. 1 get a little nervous
when 1 hear "audit,” only because 1t creates a

structure, 1t extends the timeline. You know, 1t
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just sort of creates this other regulatory
proceeding.

I think where we"re at right now, my
opinion i1s the company has a lot of work to do. All
the planning isn"t done today. The Department and
other parties care a great deal about that planning.
I would think i1t would be more productive to have
more conversational-type meetings: '"Here"s where
we"re at. What questions do you have? Is this
satisfactory from your perspective? What do we need
to do?"™ 1 would encourage that approach, as opposed
to doing nothing and then six months from now having
an audit: "What was done'™ and so forth. 1 think
it"s much more productive for it to be an ongoing
dialogue.

Q.- IT we don"t have a storm for the next
three, four years, a severe storm, we really
wouldn®*t know what the company has done to respond
to these recommendations. Or would we?

A. We would. I mean, you would.

Q. How would that be?

A. That®"s because you"re kind of In the
position -- sometimes the Department -- 1 felt i1t

was 1In the position of being the board of directors.
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There are some issues that are kind of like that.
You"re not implementing. You don"t supervise people
directly. But you"re an agency, the Attorney
General as well, that"s i1n a position of, okay, or
of representing the public, "We"re going to serve 1In
this role, and here®"s what we expect from you."

You would expect, the approach 1™m
suggesting sort of on the fly here, is more
meetings, specific progress demonstrated at each
meeting. You could transcribe them 1f you wanted,
but more an informal --

Because 1 think what the Department and
what the chairman would want to know is -- there"s a
comfort level. 1It"s not just was Recommendation 12
implemented as contemplated? But overall, 1t"s a
comfort level of will the company be ready for the
next storm.

MR. STETSON: May 1 have just a minute
to consult?

MS. KOEPNICK: Sure. Let"s go off the
record.

(Discussion off the record.)

MS. KOEPNICK: Let"s go back on the

record.
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Q.- Mr. Yardley, tell me 1f 1"ve gone over
this. If we did, 1t was yesterday, anyway. YouT"ve
been 1n consultation with the CEO while you
progressed through the research and background work
that you did to develop your self-assessment and
report. 1Is 1t your observation that the CEO has
committed to implement these recommendations that
you set forth in the self-assessment and that he has
the backing of his board as well as his management
team?

A. Yes. | don"t think there®"s any question in
my mind that that®"s the case. He"s got a very good
board of directors, or the company has a very good
board of directors, in my opinion. They"re very
engaged. They"re experienced people. They ask the
right questions -- just basing it on my personal
experience, having met with them twice on this
matter.

Q. And when you met with them, was that after
the report was concluded or written?

A. I met with them twice. 1 met with them in
January, as | think I mentioned yesterday, to set
forth the objectives and the scope of the effort to

be undertaken. And then I met with them the day
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after the report was finalized, the day after it was
filed with the Department. And 1 reviewed the key
lessons learned and recommendations.

Q.- And 1t was your sense that they were
supportive of the CEO"s commitment to implement
these recommendations?

A. Unquestionably.

Q. We talked a little bit about how you might
oversee the implementation. We talked about
internally and externally from a regulatory
standpoint. What would your opinion be of a
direction to perform a similar self-assessment a
year to 18 months from now? Would you think that
might -- with the same focus as the current report?
Would you feel that might assist implementing?

A. Certainly after the next event, i1t one
occurs within the next 18 months, there should be a
self-assessment. There should be a self-assessment
after every event. | think, you know, that"s
appropriate.

Would you do a self-assessment -- you
know, call something a self-assessment in 18 months?
I would say no. You know, the key question, you

know, outside of storm events is: Are we ready? |1
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would expect that that"s a more ongoing, continuous
conversation. It"s not something you put down and
then pick up 18 months from now.

Q.- Or 1t could be something iIn the way of an

event analysis as well.

A. If an event were to occur.
Q.- Yes.
A. A real event, not a mock event. A self-

assessment 1s appropriate at this point and would
continue to be. I"m fairly certain FPL does self-
assessments after every hurricane. There"s a
company that®"s had many hurricanes. 1 think they
had three in one month once. So that"s a good
practice.

MR. STETSON: We have no further
questions of the witness at this time.

MS. KOEPNICK: Thank you. Let"s take a
ten-minute break.

(Recess taken.)

MS. KOEPNICK: Back on the record.
We"re going to continue with cross-examination from
the Bench. Does staff have questions at this time?

BENCH EXAMINATION

BY MR. NELSON:
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Q. Mr. Yardley, relative to the communication
portion of your report, that deals with
communication, do you believe that the company
should have had PSAs already developed and preplaced
with the communication, like television stations,
radio stations, newspapers iIn that area -- prior to
the storm, that they could have just called and said
"Run this ad"™ or "Run this statement™?

A. I believe the PSA that was i1ssued on
December 11th before the storm i1s a template that"s
used frequently by the company, modified for the
potential forecast for the storm. That"s a pretty
standard issuance, that®"s issued relatively
frequently. |I"m not sure that really answered your
question, though.

Q.- No. Were there other ones, i1In order to get
the communication out there for restoration and
responsibilities, of what the customer®s responsible
for relative to their service and what the utility”s
responsible for repairing relative to their service?

A. I think 1t would help -- certainly the
electrician example 1s a very confusing one,
prioritization. |1 think a lot more communication

can take place with customers before an event, and
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with the media who 1s reporting, so that they"re
better informed as well, so that they have a better
understanding. That should all take place before
the event.

Q.- Relative to tree-trimming, you mentioned
that there should be more proactive communication 1iIn
the process of allowing both the citizens and Town
officirals to understand the iIntricacies of what goes
into setting a tree-trimming policy.

A. The tree wardens are met with regularly.
Certainly 1f there"s work that"s going to take place
in their towns, they®"re met with before that takes
place. But | don"t think 1t"s fair to expect the
tree warden to carry the communications ball with
the rest of the town. Tree wardens tend to be very
focused on their area of responsibility. So I think
something beyond that would be appropriate, so that
the community has an understanding of what the
practices are.

Q. Just to make sure 1"m clear: When you
speak about the communication with the tree warden,
that"s very specific. What you"re talking about 1is
more communication as a separate outreach with Town

officirals and maybe some of the citizen groups.
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A. Yeah, 1"m imagining that the conversation
with the tree warden 1s a fairly technical
conversation. The issue | see 1s more of a
community-understanding issue. So | wouldn®t rely
on the tree warden to sort of iInterpret that and
come up with what it all means and then communicate
it to the Town officials or even the community. |
would say the company would be better served to do
that on their own.

Q. Relative to your recommendations and the
implementation of the recommendations, the
implementation process that you were briefly getting
into with Mr. Stetson: You suggested that the
Department should be more involved with the
development of the final -- the implementation, or
are you talking about we should be more involved in

discussing the completion of that recommendation?

A. I tried to convey i1t through the sort of
board-of-directors-type approach. 1 would like to
see -- and 1 think counsel for Attorney General

asked me, you know, if I were the chairman, what
type of information would 1 be looking at.
I1"d like to be more involved 1n an

understanding perspective, without being burdened by
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a lot of new administrative procedures. So | would
want to meet with the company on some regular

basis -- every other month, whatever i1t happened to
be -- and 1 would expect them to come iIn and tell me
what they®ve accomplished, what they have planned
between now and the next meeting, and where they
were with respect to their overall goals, as well as
their current state of readiness for an event.

That would be the type information 1
would be looking for. 1 would not want to wait siXx
months -- let me just stop at six months. 1 would
not want to wait until somebody was hired to review
it, went 1n and interviewed the company. Who knows
what you get after all that. You get a lot of
words. You get a document. Maybe i1t satisfies some
objective. It wouldn®"t be what 1 would be looking
for.

Q. Would 1t be fair to say that you would be
looking for the information on how they®"re going to
carry out each one of those recommendations and
maybe an overview as to some of the things that were
considered to implement that recommendation, without
all the very minute minutiae?

A. IT I were the Department staff, I would be
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interested In seeing -- 1 would want some confidence
that Recommendation X was underway and that there
was a reasonable plan. You know, you"re not able to
put yourself kind of In the decisions that were made
going into the plan. But 1 think the plan should be
explainable, understandable, so that you would sit
back after a meeting and say, "Do they have enough
detail? Am 1 confident that 1 don"t need to worry
about this recommendation?”™ And in other cases you
may decide, based on the conversation, which 1s why
I think conversations are better, "I"m not quite as
confident on this one, so I"m going to peel back the
onion one or two layers and keep going until I™m
confident.”™ And the company will learn from that
dialogue and be prepared to respond.

Q.- You mentioned that after an event they
should do a self-assessment and we should be aware
there is an event -- could be a small event, where
we don®"t even get into an emergency, very localized
for any one of the four major utilities. Do you
think there®s a cutoff point where they should or
shouldn®t bring that self-assessment forward, and
what would you consider the requirements of that

self-assessment that would have to be reported?
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What would you -- to be included i1n that?

A. Let me answer it this way: |If I am at the
company and it s my responsibility to inform the
Department of events, no matter what size, I would
not be looking to the order 1n this proceeding to
figure out what my obligations are. 1 wouldn®t be
waiting for the Department to call me. | would
know, this i1s something the Department needs to know
about, and 1 would come forth and say, "We"ve had
this event. It turned out to be a minor event, but
we Bined up 50 crews.”™ |1 would think i1t would be
appropriate for the company to be more proactive 1in
communicating with the Department.

Q.- In your experience relative to speaking
with different utilities, different corporations, do
you find both smaller companies, such as Unitil,
being a small geographic area, to be able to
implement recommendations such as these In a more
expeditious manner? Or do you find bigger companies
or utilities to be able to implement these type
recommendations?

A. You know, I can"t speak 1n general terms.

I can speak with respect to Unitil, my

impressions -- not just on this engagement, but 1
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was i1nvolved in a prior engagement, when I was
exposed to a large number of people in the
organization.

My impression is that they have --
they"re not as burdened by some of the bureaucratic
decision-making elements that you see i1n larger
organizations. With larger organizations, you go to
the executive floor and everybody®s got their own
sort of fancy office and their own personal
assistant. They"re all lined up outside the
offices. 1 don"t think that happens quite as much
as i1t used to, i1n the old days. But they tend to be
more bureaucratic, more turf battles: "1 want to do
this."” "Wait, this 1s 1in my area.” All of those
things really detracting from your objective.

My exposure to Unitil has been that
there"s a relatively large cadre of what 1 would
call managers with significant responsibility that
have the ability to act on their own, obviously
informing the people that they work for, but there®s
an appropriate delegation of authority in many
respects. And they"re young professionals that have
considerable experience, but they"re ready to be in

the role that they®re in. They just get things
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done. They don"t wait for lots of meetings and so
forth. Obviously, In some areas you"re going to
need lots of coordination with respect to this plan.

But that they®"re attracted to work at
Unitil because -- and 1 think the company has had no
trouble attracting people to work there, because the
alternative for them, working in a large
organization, is that they are sort of stuck In this
relatively small, defined role, with not a lot of
breadth. Here there®s more opportunity for them to
develop as managers, because of that.

Q.- Thank you, Mr. Yardley.

BY MS. EVANS:

Q. Mr. Yardley, 1 have a couple of quick
questions. Could you turn your attention to your
self-assessment at Page 93. That"s titled
Post-Storm Activities. 1It"s an area we really
haven®t talked much about in these hearings.

In this section you talk about some
various activities that the company i1s taking after
the storm, and I think, from my impression, maybe
activities that a company would take after any
storm, not just a storm of this magnitude. Could

you elaborate on the appropriate activities for a
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company to take after a major, a significant storm?
And 1 notice there®"s no recommendations section on
this at all. Can you comment also: In your
experience, are these the appropriate activities to
be taking? Is the company taking them iIn an
appropriate time frame? You talked a little bit
about what the company i1s doing.

So could you elaborate a little bit on
the company®s post-storm activities and what would
be appropriate for this company to take.

A. For anything that"s not a minor event --
the company has had many minor events. They"ve been
able to respond to them. But for anything that
rises to the level of, "This was a significant
event” -- centralized services were called into
play; a lot of coordination both within the company
and outside the company -- there should be a fairly
rigorous process they go through to make sure they
capture from the different people within the
organization, and perhaps outside the organization
ifT 1t"s relevant, what their -- not just lessons
learned, what they want to change, but, you know,
"How could we make this work better?"

I don"t think 1t"s one meeting iIn the
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big conference room: "Hey, how did it go?" | think
It"s a more organized review, designed to make sure
that all the relevant information is captured and
that the value provided by the information is
realized and implemented -- similar in many roles to
what®"s done In this report, but more of an
expectation that "This i1s what"s going to happen.”

I wouldn®"t expect, and 1 would hope
that -- the focus should remain on getting power
restored and should i1gnore completely any regulatory
review, because what we don"t want to happen is
people that are making decisions in the storm room
or throughout the company to be thinking, "1 need to
document this. | need to document that. 1 need to
hire staff to keep track of every time I call a
municipal official."

You know, I would hope and I would
expect that the focus of that review would be how
did we perform, what lessons did we learn, how can
we do better?

Q. And with your engagement in review of the
company, do you feel the company i1s achieving that
goal?

A. Well, 1 was called on December 19th, in the
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middle of the storm. As | responded this morning, |1
know the company is committed. |1 don"t see this as
an issue that sort of goes away: "It came up. We
got through the hearings. | don"t want to do that
again.”™ 1 don"t think that the company itself
appreciates how transformative this event will be.

I think they have a sense, "Boy, this iIs going to
change our company,™ but I don®"t think they really
realize yet just how the organization will change
and the benefits for everything they do.

Q. To get down at a little lower level here
about the types of cleanup activities that a company
typically does at the end of a major event: You“ve
talked about patrolling the system. You talked
about making permanent repairs. You talked about
fly-over of the subtransmission system -- these type
of particular activities that a company would take
after a major event.

Do you have any recommendations that the
company should do any additional of those types of
activities after a major event? Or do you view this
as adequate, these activities which are listed here?

A. They seemed appropriate. 1 don"t know if

someone with more experience might have more to
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offer than I do In this particular area. But it"s
certainly knowing that more repairs could not be
permanent at the time, the fact that the company had
identified work orders, a process for assessing what
needed to be done, estimating the number of crew
hours that would be required to complete and a
schedule, 1t seemed appropriate to me.

Q. You said that someone with more information
or knowledge about these types of activities might
be able to elaborate on that; i1s that correct?

A. I think they could be more specific than 1
could be this morning.

Q. So 1s that why you did not include any
recommendations iIn this area? It wasn"t really an
area within your specific expertise?

A. I felt like I hadn"t spent enough time on
post-storm activities, so I wasn"t comfortable
coming up with recommendations. Had 1 spent
considerably more time on post-storm restorations,
I*m confident that 1 would have had a greater
understanding and may have had more to offer, or the
company and its self-assessment report may have had
more to offer in this area. And also, it"s the type

of thing you might want to wait a few months and do,
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with a greater gap between the end of the storm and
the assessment.
BY MR. PAREKH:

Q. Mr. Yardley, I have a couple of questions
for my own satisfaction and clarification. 1 have
seen Hurricane Bob damage to infrastructure in the
Commonwealth Electric area, and 1 was also in Maine
when there was an i1ce storm, so I have seen all the
infrastructure damage done i1In Maine.

Out of all these recommendations, |
haven®"t seen any recommendations regarding the
infrastructure: how old they are, whether they are
old and aging, and it should be looked at on a
regular basis, and so forth. What iIs your opinion
on that?

A. I had a brief discussion of that. That 1i1s
sort of a project that deserves its own scope. |1
didn"t feel, when 1 was looking at how to scope this
particular project, if there was an element that
required, you know, much more time to really do
adequately -- 1 felt it was important to really
address the organizational i1ssues and accomplish as
much as possible that would be helpful immediately

to restoring power, is how I prioritized things.
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The state of the equipment, there®s been
tremendous research done on this area. It 1is
certainly appropriate for the Department -- and I
think there®s a proceeding right now, or 1 recall
there was some proceeding in December, that sort of
looked at all the standards and policies and
practices of companies iIn many areas.

But I don"t have an opinion one way oOr
the other whether -- 1 can®t render an informed
opinion, other than what I"ve already stated on Page
94. I1f 1 can adjust quickly here.

Our counselor is pointing me to a
section on Page 94 that talks about retaining an
engineering firm to conduct a condition assessment
on the subtransmission system. | think your
question Is broader than that and goes to the
distribution system as well. But I don"t have an
opinion on that.

Q. I only ask you the question because you
have attended all the town-hall meetings in
Lunenberg and Fitchburg, and so did we. There were
a lot of complaints from a lot of the public and the
officials and the fire chief and so forth that all

the stuff which came down was such an old
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infrastructure that Fitchburg Gas and Electric
Company probably had not refurbished or improved it
for years and years and years.

A. Right.

Q. You said the other day you hear what you
want to hear as a consultant.

A. Right.

Q. But I would like to hear as an engineer
what the common public i1s saying in the street about
that.

A. And 1 would say that"s probably a
conversation that has to take place among engineers
and that should be shared with the public. 1°m not
saying | didn"t give great weight to the comments of
the public or that that was their impression. 1
respect that that was their impression.

You know, is it reality, based on public
input? 1 don"t think that"s particularly
informative. But are there people that can look at
that underlying i1ssue and ask that question and
respond? Yes, there are. Most distribution
systems, particularly in urban areas, that are
aging -- 1 mean, this is a common problem throughout

the i1ndustry. Many facilities are 50 and 60 years
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old. 1 can tell from you my experience, looking at
some capital budgeting processes, you know, there®s
always the question in the mind of the planner, "Do
I replace this device before 1t fails, or is it more
efficient, because the consequences of failure are
relatively minor, to wait until 1t does fail?" So
those types of conversations are fairly common among
planning engineers. So that®"s the level of dialogue
that 1 would expect would be --

Q. I"m just talking about a lot of line crews
who were there, they were reporting aging, old
infrastructure to the other people and the public

and so forth.

A. I understand there was some anecdotal
evidence. I would characterize 1t as that. As 1
stated yesterday, | believe, 1 didn"t talk to any

line crews. You know, it deserves what weight 1t
should be given. But I"m not In any way not

giving -- double negative here. 1 think the

respect -- that that"s the opinion of a person who
may have talked to a line crew while bringing them a
cup of coffee -- 1 respect that that"s their opinion
and that impression. |1 don"t think it"s sufficient

to really move forward on.
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BY MR. PERLMUTTER:

Q. I have a few questions for you, Mr.

Yardley. First I"m going to start with a very broad
question, and that is: 1Is i1t fair to characterize
the self-assessment report as forward-looking, that
is, 1dentifying steps the company should take i1n the
future to better prepare i1tself for emergency
situations In order to Improve its response and
restoration performance, versus backward-looking,
identifying steps the company should have taken
prior to the storm to ensure that it would be better
prepared?

A. That®"s correct. | provided some facts to
provide a context for the forward-looking review.

Q. And notwithstanding the forward-looking
focus of the report, did you in the preparation of
the report reach any conclusions whether the company
should have taken steps -- should have implemented
any of the recommendations previously, in order to
ensure that i1t could have been better prepared to
respond to the storm?

A. I formed a general opinion. | don"t know
iT 1 can answer that with respect to each

recommendation.
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Q. Maybe your general opinion would be
helpful.

A. My general opinion is that, you know, this
IS a competent company. It did not plan for a storm

of this magnitude. The ERP did not reflect that.
You know, Standard & Poor®s didn"t anticipate the
mortgage crisis, although they certainly -- you
could argue, 1n hindsight, why didn"t they?

But my general impression was, from
looking at the other companies, where i1s Unitil on
the learning curve? And not having had the three or
four or five significant storms that some of the
other companies have had, they"re lower on the
learning curve.

But this 1s a significant event, and
they"re going to make now considerable progress.
They"re not going to get to FP&L or National Grid
after their next storm, but they will be
substantially on their way after this storm. That
was my general opinion.

Q. One more question along these lines: Based
on your experience and expertise in the electric
industry, do you believe the Department should have

expected the company to be better prepared to
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respond to a storm of this magnitude?

A. I think the Department®s perspective -- you
know, you sat through the hearings five days.

You"ve done a tremendous amount of work on this
proceeding. I think, applying hindsight, 1 think
that"s a fair question to ask. The Department
always hopes, when some event happens, it touches
the public, that they get directly involved iIn --
they"re relying on the company to be prepared. You
know, I could understand maybe why the company
wasn"t as prepared, but I would think the Department
would expect them to be more prepared. | think
that"s reasonable.

Q. I"m going to move to a little different
issue. This first one might be stating the obvious,
but maybe not: But based on the company®s review of
its performance during the recent storm, do you
conclude that the company was unprepared from a
resource and process standpoint to respond to a
storm as severe the as one In "08 and one that
caused so much damage?

A. No. I was really looking forward to what
changes could be made. I did not perform a thorough

diagnostic of every process. | didn"t pursue that
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line of 1Inquiry.

Q. So you didn"t reach a conclusion whether
the company was or was not prepared to respond to
this kind of storm?

A. I reached a conclusion, which 1s i1n the
report, that the ERP was not adequate to respond to
a storm of this magnitude.

Q. 111 follow along these lines, using your
words: Did you reach any conclusion about whether
the 1nadequacy of the ERP was the primary i1f not the
sole reason that it took so long for the company to
restore service after the storm hit?

A. I*m not sure | agree with your premise, 'so
long." I understand 1t took a long time. But I™"m
not sure I want to apply the pejorative manner of
that term.

Q. Did you reach any conclusion about whether
the 1nadequacy was one of the 1f not the primary
reason that i1t took approximately two weeks for the
company to restore service after the storm?

A. I think the phrasing of the question
suggests that it should have been 12 days or 10
days, and I don"t know the answer to that. 1 can

state that, obviously, after an event you look back
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and say, "Why didn*"t we do more planning for this?
Why didn®"t we run this scenario?"” and so forth.

And that"s valid. 1I"m still convinced
that planning in the abstract, never having gone
through an event like this, has value, but not as
much value as i1t has now. | think there®s no
substitute for experience, painful as i1t might be,
to be prepared for the next storm.

Q.- Continuing on: Based on your review of the
company®"s performance during the storm, do you
conclude that the company was aware at an early
stage of the restoration process that, because of
what you termed inadequacy of the ERP, that i1t was
unprepared to respond to the storm in a timely
manner?

A. I certainly didn"t conclude that. You
know, I didn"t -- I haven®t performed that -- 1
haven®t focused my mind on that particular question.

Q. Then you spent a bit of time this morning
talking about communication with local officials.

A. Yes.

Q. And based on your review of the company®s
performance during the storm, do you conclude that

the company was sufficiently forthcoming to local

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC




o 0o A~ W DN

\‘

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

937

officials regarding i1ts ability to respond to the
storm and the status of its restoration effort? And
I should say, to local officials and the public 1In
general.

A. I think this i1s discussed iIn the report.
But I believe that the public-communications
function in the company itself didn"t have all the
information that they might need to respond to some
of the questions, particularly during the second
week of the storm. So, for example, customers have
sort of one type of question the first few days, and
then over time they sort of get more detailed, sort
of putting themselves in the place of the company
and asking operationally, "What"s going on in my
neighborhood?'” The company didn®"t have systems to
support that answer.

But at no time -- I mean, 1 didn"t
conclude that there was any misleading going on, any
sort of, "Let"s try to do this favorably.” 1 went
into great detail on the estimated restoration
times, including a table that I tried to be as
complete as possible, which I think tells the story
that the company didn"t appreciate, didn"t have the

intelligence and almost became reticent later in the
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storm to provide estimated restoration times. It

wasn"t an effort to mislead. Maybe some of the

words could have been better. 1 mean, the
“"primaries,” 1 don"t know what that means if I"m a
customer -- that type of thing; more plain language.

But 1 think there"s been a number of
recommendations that go to this point.

Q. And one final group of questions: Based on
your review of the company®s performance, have you
reached any conclusions regarding which part of the
ERP was most inadequate to prepare the company for
the storm? For example, was the big problem that
the company didn®"t have enough resources at its
disposal to respond to the storm?

A. The ERP had the basic elements, the basic

structure. It was implemented by people that had
used 1t many times. It wasn"t a document they sort
of called down and looked at: ™"What do I do now?"

They"d done i1t many times on relatively minor
events, relative to this storm, that were
concentrated In their own service area, iIn their own
scope of responsibility. So for that purpose, i1t
was adequate and has been adequate. But for a storm

of this magnitude, 1t didn"t take me long to
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conclude that i1t really wasn"t adequate for
something like this.

Q.- Let me ask 1t more directly: Do you
conclude that the biggest impediment the company
faced in i1ts effort to restore service was
insufficient resources for damage assessment,
restoration, and other support-type services?

A. I"m not sure I would say that was the
biggest. 1 think 1t all fits together. 1It"s tools.
It°s --

That"s why the recommendations, even
though we might go through them one by one, they“re
really sort of all-encompassing. So resources 1S
certainly one area. Fortunately, resources are not
that difficult to address i1n a future storm. The
implementation of solutions i1sn”"t that complex or
time-consuming. Some of the other ones may be more
challenging.

Q. Let me push forward a little on this.

Based on your review, why do you think in the
December 19th-21st time frame, when National Grid
had its crews, it was able to move the effort
forward more quickly than had occurred over the

previous week to ten days?
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A. I don"t know that National Grid crews
repaired lines any faster than Unitil or its
contractor crews. | suspect not. They brought in a
number of resources. Those resources were freed up
in the region, 1f you will. Unitil had been in
contact with them throughout the storm. There was
some potential that they might have crews available
on the 16th, but they were not able to provide crews
at that time because NSTAR®"s crews were called back
to NSTAR.

I don"t want to wander from the thrust
of your question. But I do know that when Unitil
contacted National Grid, they were iInterested not
only iIn crews but In some more support functions to
manage those crews, and that was a service that
National Grid was able to provide as well.

Q.- And what are those support functions?

A. Some of the logistics support, the ability
to set up a separate staging area. So one of the
recommendations In this area are, okay, maybe
National Grid can"t help out in the next storm.
Unitil needs to be prepared to set up logistics,
separate staging areas, on its own. To me, that"s

just common sense.
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Q. Is that primarily a resource i1ssue, having
the resources to do that?

A. It*s primarily an organizational 1issue,
having lined up i1n advance contracts with vendors so
you"re not on the phone with a vendor trying to
figure out what services they"re going to provide
and how fast they can get there and that sort of
thing. 1I1t"s a lot of work that can be done in
advance, and then the execution should be
straightforward.

Q. Let me just ask you about a couple of
recommendations. I1"m looking at your summary of
recommendations In the executive-summary part of the
self-assessment report. | just want to ask for some
of these whether these should be considered sort of
low-cost, quote-unquote, fixes, or less costly. I™m
going look at some having to do with resources.

Recommendation 1 is the recruitment of
crews. Would you say that, based on your experience
in the industry, this 1s a -- you would characterize
this as a relatively low-cost recommendation to
implement?

A. Yes.

Q. And moving to Recommendation 3, damage-
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assessment staffing and training: Again, would you
characterize this as a low-cost recommendation to
implement?

A. I"m hesitating only because of the training
aspect. That could be a fairly substantial cost. 1

know we haven®t defined "low cost” and "significant

cost." But that may not be trivial.

Q. What about Recommendation 5, storm-room
staffing?

A. I would characterize that as a low cost,

but not necessarily quick to implement, only because
some thought needs to be given to responsibilities
and off-loading responsibilities of the managers.

That"s not a sort of half-day meeting.

Q. And Recommendation 9, crew logistics
support?
A. I can™"t speak to the cost of implementing.

I don"t think 1t"s a difficult issue to address.

The company may already have taken steps toward
this, toward addressing this. 1 can"t speak to the
cost, though. 1 don"t know 1f there are reservation
fees or 1f 1It"s just sort of pay as you go. That
type of contractual matter I can"t speak to.

Q.- Recommendation 12, call-center training and
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staffing?

A. Again, the training, | can®"t comment on the
cost of the training. But In terms of organizing
the effort, identifying people that can serve in
that function, that"s some work, but I didn"t see it
as a costly exercise.

Q. And finally, Recommendation 27, staffing
and training.

A. Again, | don"t see this as necessarily a
high-cost i1tem; but, you know, some thought will
need to go into 1it.

Q. Thank you.

MS. KOEPNICK: That completes the
Department™s cross-examination of Mr. Yardley. Does
the company have any redirect?

MR. MUELLER: Could I have a minute with
the witness, please?

MS. KOEPNICK: Sure. Let"s go off the
record for a minute.

(Recess taken.)

MS. KOEPNICK: Let"s go back on the
record. Does the company have redirect?

MR. MUELLER: Yes, we do.

MS_. KOEPNICK: Please continue.
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MR. MUELLER: Thank you.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MUELLER:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Yardley.

A. Good morning.

Q. You indicated 1n one response that you
thought that the winter storm of 2008 and lessons
learned by the company were a transformative event.
Can you elaborate on that, please?

A. Yes. This 1s kind of my personal opinion
based on experience. What | meant by that -- 1
guess | could address what I didn"t mean and what I
meant.

The company understands the situation
and what they need to do. It has the attention of
everybody i1t needs to have the attention of. It has
the resources devoted. It has the commitment. It
has the support of the board; 1 think that came up
this morning. So the company has an appreciation of
what needs to be done. And they also understand, my
opinion i1s, that a lot of other people care about
what they do and that they need to communicate with
others that may have a contribution to make -- the

Department, municipals -- as well that may have some
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of their own views as to what needs to be done and
that that should be 1ncorporated.

When 1 veered off iInto sort of the
philosophy of this being a transformative event,
what 1 tried to convey was that 1 think that three
or four or five years from now, when you have that
perspective and you look back at how your
organization is functioning, you realize, "Wow, this
particular event really changed the company.”™ And I
think right now the company has a sense that that
may happen.

But 1"m looking at i1t as an outsider and
seeing events, how they -- what impact they had
several years later. You can look back and say,
"That event -- we didn"t appreciate 1t at the time,
but that event really had a significant impact on
the company.”™ When I said the word
"transformative,” | was thinking of that. | wasn"t
commenting at all on the company®s commitment, does
it understand what it needs to do, is it committed
to executing and what needs to be done. 1 have no
reservations iIn that respect.

MR. MUELLER: That"s all we have.

MS. KOEPNICK: Thank you.
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I think we should take a five-minute
break and then continue with the company®"s panel of
witnesses.

(Recess taken.)

MS. KOEPNICK: Let"s go back on the
record. We"re going to continue with the
Department®™s cross-examination of the company®s
panel of witnesses. | first remind you all that you
are under oath. 1°d ask that we just go down the
line, that each witness would state his name for the
record.

WITNESS LETOURNEAU: I*m Raymond A.
Letourneau, Jr.

WITNESS FRAPPIER: Mark Frappier.

WITNESS DUBE: Chris Dube.

WITNESS SPRAGUE: Kevin Sprague.

WITNESS MEISSNER: Tom Meissner.

WITNESS FRANCAZIO: Richard Francazio.

WITNESS GANTZ: George Gantz.

WITNESS LAMBERT: Mark Lambert.

THOMAS P. MEISSNER, JR., GEORGE R.

GANTZ, MARK LAMBERT, RAYMOND LETOURNEAU,

RICHARD FRANCAZIO, MARK FRAPPIER,

CHRISTOPHER DUBE, and KEVIN SPRAGUE,
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Previously Sworn

CONTINUED BENCH EXAMINATION
BY MR. PERLMUTTER:

Q.- Good morning. [I"m going to try to start us
walking through the storm again. 1 started
yesterday. |I"m not sure how successful we were. |1
want to make sure we understand what happened at the
company and what the company®s perception was of the
status of the system.

I*m going to first ask a general
question, which 1s: For each 24-hour cycle, for
each day, did the company begin the day with an
estimate or projection of the time i1t would take to
assess the damage to its T&D system and then to
restore service? Is this something that i1f I had
called you at 7:00 o"clock and spoken to each one of
you, you could have said, '"Based on where we are
now, we think damage assessment will take this long,
and based on the information we have, we think
restoration of service will take this long"?

111 jump in: |If that"s just not the
way you were looking at i1t, please tell me, because
then | can ask my question In a way that 1is

consistent with the way you were looking at it.
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A. [SPRAGUE] I would say generally that"s not
the way we were looking at 1t. You know, I don*"t
think -- 1t"s not really a fair represe